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FLYING HIGH TRUST
(B company limited by guarantes)

TRUSTEES' REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

The Trusteses prasent their annual report together with the financial statements and audiior's repart of tha
charitable company for the period 1 September 2018 to 31 August 20719, The annual repor senves the
purpases of both & Trustees' report, and & Dirsciors’ repart under Company Liw,

The Trust operates 25 primary scademies in the East Midlands [Motlingham City, Modtinghamshire  and
Darbyshirel, Currently, the academies have a combined pupil capacily (F2 to Year &) of 7,140 and had a roll of
6,654 in the October 2018 schoal census,

Structure, Governance and Management

Constitution

The academy frust (5 8 company limited by guerantee and an exempl charily. The charfable comparny's
memorandum and arficles of association are the primary governing documents of the academy frusl. The
Trustees of the Flying High Truat Limited are also the Directors of the charitable company for the purposes of

company law, The charitable company operales as Flying High Trust.

Details of the Trustees who served during the year are inciuded in the Reference and Adminksirallve delads on
page 1.

Members' Liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the essets of the charitable company in the
evant af it baing wound up while they are a member, or within one year sfter they cease to be a member, such
amaunt ag may be required, nol excesding £10, for the debts and liabilities coniracted befora they ceased to ba
a mambaer.

Trustess” Indemnities

Trustees benefit from indemnily Insurance purchased af the Company's expence to cover the liability of the
Trustees and Directars by virdue of any rule of law would ctherwise altach to them in respect of any negligence,
default or breach of trust or breach of duty of which they may be guilty in relation to the Trust: Provided that any
such insurance shall nol extend to; (i) any claim arising from any act or omission which Trustees know to bea
breach of duty ar which was commiitad by the Trustees in reckless digregard to whether it was a breach of {rust
or breach of duly or nof; and {5} the cosls of any unsuccessful defence to a criminal prosecution brought against
tha Trustesas in their capacity as Diractors of the Company. Further, this Article does nof authorise 8 Trustee to
benefit from any indemnity insurance that would be rendered vesd by any provision of the Companies Act 2006,
the Charffies Act 2011 or any other provision of law.

Method of Recruitment and Appointment or Election of Trusteas

Uinder section 50 of the aticles of association, the Members will appoint up to five Trusiees and the Chief
Executive Officer, In addition, Articke 58 parmits the Trustees to appoint additional Co-opled Trustees, A 'Co-
opted Trustese' means a person who is appointed 8 Trustee by being Co-opted by Trustees who have not
thamselves bean so appointed.

The term of office for any Trusiee shall be four years, save that this time Emit shall not apply 1o any post, which
Is held ex officio. Subject to remaining eligible to be a particular typa of Trustes, any Truslee may be re-
appointed of re-elected at a General Mesating or an Annual General Meaeling.

Mo more than one third of the Trustees should be employees of the Trust.
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FLYING HIGH TRUST
(& company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES" REFORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

Policies and Procedures Adopted for the Induction and Training of Trustees

The training for each new Trustes will depend on their existing experience. Where necessary, induction will
include relevant trafning on key aspects of their roles and responsibilities — either in-house or through external
providers as appropriate, New Trusiees will be given the opportunity to meet in the vasious academies of the
Trust and to mee: with key staff, All Trustees are provided with copies of palicles, procedures, minutas,
accounts, budgets, risk registers and development plans that they will need to undedake their roles,

Organisational Structure

As @ charity and company fimited by guarantes, the Trust is governed by a board of rusiees (lhe Board) who
have overall responaibility and ultimate decision making authority for all the work of the Trust, including the
establishing and runming of the academies maintamed by the Trust.

In order to suppart the effective operaion of the Trust and the Acadamies, the Board has establshed a number
of commitiess to which it delegates cerlain of its powers and functions. In summary, the Board has astablished
three different types of commites

' Two main Board committess which are established to deal with Trusi-wide matters - Finance, pacpla and
resources, and pupils, standards and strategic development (Board Committess),

. Local Hub Baardgs which ane establishes to serutinise the perfformance of 2 group of schools and fo
provide a channel of communications and influence between the Board and local governing bodies; and

. Local Governing Bodies (LGB) which are estabished by the Boand io support the effective operation of
fhe Academies.

Terms of referance sef cut the constitution, membership and proceedings of the committees the Board has
petablished, these are reviewad togethar with the memberghip of the committees at least once ewvery twehie
months

I addificn fo the Board and committees, a Chief Execulive Officer has besn appointed and they are direcily
accoundable to the Board and act as the Accounting Officer for the Trusl, The Board is responsible for the
performance managament of the Chief Execufive Officer.

Ta support the Chisf Executive Officer, a Strategic Development Group has been established comprising the
Deputy CEQ, Director of Education and the Director of Business and Finance. The team wodks directly o the

Chief Executive Officer,

The Strategic Heads' Group is comprised of Head teachers and relevant senior lsaders from the Trust central
team, The group will be designated by Chief Executive Officer in consultation with the Board of Trustess. The
strategic heads' group will support the Chief Executive Officer in securing the vision, developmant and high
performance of the Trust

Risk Management

Trusless are responsible for the management of risks to which the Trust is exposed, Officers maintain a
detailed operational risk register in accordance with the statement of recommendad practice (SORFP) approach
to idenfifying and managing the risks of the Trest A high level rsk register i3 owned by the Board of Trustees
and this is reviewed on a termly basis.

The pupils, siandards, audit and strategic davelopmeant group is responsible for the detalled review of headline
risks and sppropriste escalation to the Board.

The Senior Leadership Team of the Trust hold & half termly risk. meeting when key risks, priorittes and actians
to mitigate the identified risks are considared,
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FLYING HIGH TRUST
{& company limited by guaraniaa)

TRUSTEES' REPORT {CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

Arrangements for Setting Pay and Remuneration of Key Management Personnel

The policy and proceduras for setting pay and remuneration of the Truest Senior Leadership team is detarmined
by the Finance, People and Resources commities,  Thedr remit In refstion fo these arrangements are detailed
balow:

. Review tha staffing structure of the Trust based on plans presented by the Cheef Exacutive Officer andfor
Director of Business & Finance and furds avadable for the Trust, and make recommendabions to the
Board.

= Ensure that a consistent approach to performance management s adopled across the Trust,

" Caonsider and recommend a pay policy for the Trust to be agreed by the Board and ensure that a
consistent approach to pay review is in place across the Trust,

- Enaure that the Trust adopts an appropriate range of parsonnel procedures .9, disciplinary, grievance,
capability and remunaraticn.

The pay and remuneration of the Trst's Senior Leadership Team & determined through the approved pay
policy amd prograssion i based on paformance management, which must be reported to and approved by the
Finamnce, People and Rescurces commities,

Employment of Disabled Persons

The Truat's policy is to give full and fair consideration to spplications for employmant made by disabled persons,
having regard for their particular sptitudes and abilifies. Disabled employess receive appropriate training to
promate their carser development within the academy. Employess who bacome disabled are retained in their
existing posts where possible or refrained for suitable alternative posts.

Employes Involvement

The Trust i= an equal opportunities employer and its policies for the recruitment, training, canser development
and promation of employess are based on the relevant merits and abilities of the individuals concerned. This is
regardless of race, colour, ethnic or national origin, religious belief, political opinion o affiliation, sex, marital
slatus, sexual orfentation, gender reassignmeant, age or disability.

Trade Union Facility Time
The Trust had 3 members of staff (FTE - 2.8} who were relevant union officials during the period. None of tha
staff spent any lime on faclly time within the scope of the Regulations so no further disclosures ara raquired.

Related Parties and other Connected Charities and Organisations

Owing to the nature of the Academy Trust and the compasition of the Board of Trustees being drawn from local
public and private seclor organésations, transactions may take place with organisations in which the Trust has
an inferest. Al ransactions imvolving such organisations are conducted af anm's langth and in accordance with
the Trust's financial regulations and procurement procadures.

Cotgrave Candleby Lane School is 8 Teaching School, and provides professional development programmes
and opportundti=s thraugh Inspiring Leaders Limitad.

Page 4



FLYING HIGH TRUST
(A company limited by guarantes)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (COMTINUED)
FOR THE ¥YEAR ENDED 31 AUGLUST 2019

Dhjectives and Aclivities

Objects and Aims
The objects of the Trust, as sel oul in the Articles of Assodation, are specifically restricted o

a} toadvance for the public benefit education m the United Kingdom, In particular but without prejudics o
the generality of the foragaing by establishing, maintaining, carrving on, managing and developing
schools ["the Academies”) offering a broad and balanced currcuburm; and

b}  providing recreational and leisure time facilties in the interests of social weltare for the Inhabitants of the
United Kingdom especially those whio have need of such faclities by reascn of their vouth, age, infirmity
ar disablement, poverly or social and sconomic circumsiancas.

Objectives, Strategies and Activities
The ethos behind the Trust iz ona of sustainable school improvement; and schools joining the Trus! do so with
the prime aim of mproving themsalves end each othier so that thay can all become outstanding schools driven

by & seif-improving sysiem,

This is achieved through the develcpment and embedding of the professional continuum; atiracting figh calibre
frainees to our School Centred Initial Tescher Training programme, nurturing tadent, providing high qualily
bespoke CPD to shape careers and ensuring we grow our own inspirational school leaders, Togethar we can
achieve excellence.

Tnls ethas is guided by our core principles;
Children first - at the heart of every decision is “will this benefit our children'?

. Aspiration for all - children, staff, families and local communities to aim high and dream big, kook back
with pride and forward with confidence.

# Ersuring our schoolks are at the heart of their communifies.

. Supportng meaningful partnership = schools that suppord and challenge each ofher to become the bast
schoods in the universe through mutual accountabiity

. A commirment to continuous improvement - 1o strive 1o provide the best oppartuniies for our children so
that they can look back with pride and forward with confidence.

. Primary led - this is our area of passion and expertise and we focus on developing the whole child and
each child as an individual.

The key objects / aims for the year ended 31 August 2019 are summarised below:

. Demonsirate a restiessness to continually improve, to never stand still, with the ultimate aim providing the
best oppertunities and experiences for our children.
Strive to ensure that every child fulfils their potantial regardiess of potantial barriers ta learming,
Commit to become an outstanding, seli-mproving Trust and to suppoding the profession and
development of all schools within the parfnership.
Commit to a schookled system,
Commit to the values, principles, policies and procedures of the TrusL
To witinnately strive for all of our schools to be the best schools in the Universa.

Public Benefit

The Trustees hawve complied with the duly in Seclion 4 of the Charities Act 2005, to have due regard 1o pubdic
berafil guidance published by the Charlty Commisson In exescising their powers or duties. In paricuar, the
Trustees consider how planned activities will confribute 1o the aims and cbiectives they have sel.  The main
public banafit defvered by the Trust is the maintenance and development of a high gualty education to all pupds
in its care. It is the Trustees aim to provide outstanding teaching and learning oppertunities in el schaols within
e Trust
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FLYIMG HIGH TRUST
(& company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2049

Strateglc Report

Achlevements and Performance
The Trust now provides education for over 6500 children in the East Midlands, fulfilfing s main charitabla
activity of the delivery of a high quality education to all pupils in s care.

The Trust is centred on schoals working In coflaberation ta ensure sustainable improvemnent. The growth model
iz cenired on capaclty, ensuring that the Trust has the infernal capacify, both within the central team and our
partner schools, 1o effect positive change In supporting all achools to become autstanding. This capacity model
iz based on a 2.1 ralio, whereby thers are a minimum of two good or better schools (those with the capacity to
suppodt) to one school reguirng support,

The Trusl has grown over the past twelve months to Increase the number of academies from 20 to 23, The
following academies joining the Trust during the 201815 academic year

* Aldarman Pounder infant School (joined 1 Saptember 2018).
= Ermishabe Infant School (joined 1 December 2018).
. Breaklands Primary School {joined 1 July 2018).

The quality of educaficn provided by the Trust has improved over the year, and this is reflected in both the
Ofsted judgemants achieved by schools inspected during the vear and Key Stage 2 results

The following academies were inspected during 201812 and edher maintained or improved thelr Ofsted
judgements:

. Edwalton Primary School — mspected September 2018, mainiaining an cverall good judgemeant,
. Bilstharpe Flying High Academy — inspecied Saptember 2018, maintaining an overall good judgement
Gresmyood Primary & Nursery School — nspectad June 2013, mairdaining an overall good judgement,

Attainment and Progress Outcomes
The performance data for 2019 shows that performance i improving and the Trust is above the national
averages for children achisving ARE or above. A summary of the key school perfarmance data is shown below:

Early Yoars
EYFS Trust 2019 Mational
GLD N 2018
EXP Ta% T2%

Phonlcs

¥i Trust 2018 National
PHOMNICS 2018
ARE 82% B2%
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FLYING HIGH TRUST
iA company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

Key Stage 1
K51 Trust 2019 Naticnal
READING 2018
ARE TE 76%
K51 Trust 2019 National
WRITING 2018
ARE Fa BO%
KS1 Trust 2019 National
MATHS 2018
ARE TT% TE
Key Stags 2
K52 Trust Mational
READING 2019 2019
ARE TH% T3%
K32 Trust National
WRITING 2019 2019
ARE [EL TB%
K52 Trust 2019 National
MATHS 2019
ARE BT, To%
[CH Trust 2019 National
EGPS 2019
“ARE E1% 78
H Trust 2019 National
COMBINED 2019
ARE B B5%

Key Financial Performance Indicators

Indicator T!Eﬁ Actual
Staff costs as a % of total income < or =7 T2.6%
Surphis as % of folal incomea = o = 5% 11.24%
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FLYING HIGH TRUST
{A company limited by guaranfes)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (COMTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2013

Going Concarn

After making appropriate anguires, the Board of Trustees has reascnable expeciation lhal the Trusl has
adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable fulure. For this reason, it continues
to adopt the going concern basis in praparing the financial statements, Further details regarding the adoption of
the going concern basis can be found in the Statement of Accounting Policies,

Financial Review

The majarity of the Trust's income is obtained from the DFE wvia the Education Standards Funding Agency
{ESFA) in the form of recurrent grants (Revenue and Capital) o the Trust's academies, the use of which is
restricted to particular educational purposes. The granis received from the DIE during the period ended 31
August 2019 and the associsted expenditure is shown within Resincled Funds in the Staterment of Financial
Activities.

Ag at 31 August 2018, the net book valee of fixed assets was £53,384,889 and movemants in tangible fixed
assets are shown in note 15 to the financial stafements. The assels were used exclusivaly for providing
education and the associated support servicas for pupils of the Trust's academies,

Key financial policies adopted or reviewed during the year cover procurarment of goods and services, tendering,
gifts and hospitality, expenszes and anfi-fraud all of which are set out in thi Trust Financial Procedures Policy. In
additicn, reviews were also underiaken of the Whistleblowing and Business Interest policies. The Trust's
procedures set out the framewsork for financiel management, including the financial responsibilites of Trustess,
Trust Semior Leadership Tesm, Hesd teachers and fimance slaff cenfrally and in academies. Delegated
financial respansibiities are set out within the Trust's scheme of delegation and the financial procedures,

The central services offer covers school imorovement and quality assurance, governance, staff wellbeing and
devalopment, finance, governance, health and safety, estates, IT and HR. This offer is under condinual review
and will continue to develop alongside the growih of the Trust.

Reserves Policy

The Board of Trusiees review the level of reserves annually s part of the strategic financial planning process.
Thiz review Lakes into account the nature of the income and expenditure streams, and the need to maich these
egainst axisting commitmaents, fulure cost pressures and the nature of the resenses hald.

The reserves palicy of the Trust is to carry forward sufficient funds to mest the long-term objectives of The Trust
and to provide working capital, whils! snsuring that it does not affect #ts current operational actvities,

During the year, three academies have joined the Trus! contributing towards the current level of reserses at the
31 August 2078,

The Trust held fund balances at 31 August 2019 tofalling £47 595 268 a3 outlined in note 19 to tha financial
statements, which is allocated as follows:

Fund £
Restricted Fixed Azzei Fund 43,895 088
Penzion Kesene (20,287 00
Restricted Funds 4 08T 182
Total Balance 47,695,268

O the total restricted fixed assel fund, £63 384 880 can only be realised through the disposal of froed assels,
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FLYING HIGH TRUST
(& company limited by guaranteg)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

All schools within the Trust undartake robust three year strategic financial planning and wilhin the resiricted
funds balance, thare are a number of ring-fenced funds, which have already committed for the 2018520 financial
year. In addiion, the restricted funds balance will also be used to invest in e following:

* The Trusl is committed towards maintaining our buildings and a 10-year estates strategy and capstal
maintenance programme 5 being developed. As part of this all schoolz will be develaping, maintaining
and allccaling funding fowards a rofling mamtenancs programme.

. ICT provision is & key part of our children's leaming, and all of owr academies will be devedoping,
maintzining and allxcating funding towards a rolling maintenance programme.

The future cost pressures facing the education sector in particular, will also reduce the reserves held over the
medium term.

Investmeant Policy
The Trust operates an investment policy that saeks fo maximise refurns commensurate, with 8 wery low risk
proifile,

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The Trust manages 15 risks appropriately. We consider that risks such as the uncertainty over the LGPS deficit
and fulure changes to Education Services Grant funding will feature in the financial risk register 23 the main
areas of concern

The key risks identified by the Trustees are:

» A decline of pupils’ altainment and school performance. This Is mitigabed by rigorous maonitoring of
performance, a continued focus on high quality teaching, early identfication and tracking of valnerable
ard under-parforming groups and developing and improving gowarmance,

. Failure to achieve planned growth and capacity. This is miigated by continuing to improve perfarmance
and ensuring that staff and pupils in participaling academies have a good experience and becorme the
best ambassadors for the Trust.

. Failure o manage finances effectively resulting in financial insecurity and instabilily. This is miigaled by
tha appointment of a suitably exparianced and guaelified Directar of Business and Fimance, appropriate
finance managament procasses and systems implemented across FHT and regular training for 2l FHT
blsiness managsars,

. FHT becomes aver-reliant on the curmeni Chief Executive Officer for tha managemeant and development
of the Trust. This is miligated by the appointment of 8 Depuly CED, Direcior of Education, the creation of
a strafegic leadership group and building knowledge and capacity.

Liability for building maintenance and repairs in future participating academies is beyond FHT financiel
capacity to address, This B mitigaled by robust due diligence procesass, close collsboration and
communication with the LA prior to completing the Transfer Agreement fo ensure the LA fulfils its
respongibilties and close laison with the ESFA re potential maintenance grants for identifiad priorities,
FHT lacks the capacity and infrastructure 1o support participating schools. This i5 mitigated by the
eppointment of a Deputy CED, Director of Education, Directors of School Improvement, Director of
Business and Firance, an Operalions Mamager, the adoplion of central finance management systems,
keeping workload and impact of central staff under review as the Trust expands and exploring
opportunibies for commissioning of central services.

Fundraising
The Trust doas not wuse any external fundraisers, All fundraising undertaken during the year was monitored by
fha Trustess.
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FLYING HIGH TRUST
{A company limited by guarantes)

TRUSTEES' REPORT {CONTINUED)
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

Plans for Future Periods

The Trust s centred on scheals warking in collaboration to ensure sustainable improvernenl The growih model
is cantred on capacity, ensuring that the Trust has the internal capacity, within bolh the central tearm and our
pariner schools, 1o effect posilive change in supporting all schools to become outstanding. Capacily is based
an a 2:1 ratio, whereby there are @ minimum of two good ar better schools (those with the capacity to support)
o ona school requining support.

The growth plan of the Trust is measured and deliberate to ensure that it s sustainable, and thare is sufficient
schoal improvemant and business development capacity. The experience of establishing and growing a Muki
Academy Trust has anabled the Trust 1o clearly dentify principles for growth, effective siralegies and systams to
ensure consistency and impact, and to develop at a susiainable rate, Ower a three-year pariod, the Trust
intends to grow {o 30 o 40 schools in line with the growdh plan,

Funds held as Custodian Trustes on Behalf of Others
The Trust doss mot 2ci 3 custodian trustes, o Tunds are haeld on behalf of other charities.

Auditor
In 50 far as the Trustess are aware:

- there is no relevant sudit information of which the charitable company’s auditor is unaware; and

- the Trustees have taken all staps that they ought to hawve faken to make themselves aware of any
refevant audit information and to establish that the auditor is aware of that infermation.

The Trustess’ repord, incorporating a strategic report, was approved by arder of thae Board of Trustees, as the
company directors, on |'§{ ji I | and signed on its behalf by

Mr M Robinson
Chair
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FLYING HIGH TRUST
A company limited by guarantes)

GOVERMANCE STATEMENT

Scope of responsibility

As Trustees, we acknowledge wa have ovarall responsibility for ensuring that Flying High Trust has an effective
and appropriale system of control, financial and cltherwise, However, such a system is designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can provide only reasonable and not
abealute assurance against material misslalamant ar loss.

The Board of Trustess has delegated the day-to-day responsibiity fo the Chisf Executive Officer, a3 accounting
officer, for ensuring financial controls conform with the requirements of both propriety and good financial
management and in accordance with the requirements and responsibilifies assigned to i in the funding
agreement bebween Flying High Trust and the Sacretary of State for Education. They are alao respansible for
reporting to the Board of Trustees any material waaknesses of breakdowns in intermal contral,

Governance

The information on governance included here supplemends that described i tha Trustees' report and In the
Statemnent of Trustess' responsibfitizs. The Board of Trustaes has farmally mat 3 times during the yesar,

Aftendance during the year at meetings of the Board of Trustess was as follows:

Trustes Meetings attendad Out of a possible
br J Beaurncnt 3 |
Mr P Bennett 2 a
Wir 5 Hoult 1 1
Mrs 5 Littefair 2 a
firs K hMckenna 3 3
Mir M Robingon, Chalr 3 3
Mr C Whealley, Chief Executive Officer and 3 3

Accounting Officer

Duiring the year, there has bean ane appaintment — Mr 5 Hoult on 20 May 2019, In addition, Mrs K McKenna
resigned as a Trustes after the and of the accounting period on 29 September 2018,

The Trustees have established two working commiftees — Pupils, Standards & Strefegic Development and
Finance, People & Resources. The Board will task these groups with specific areas for exploration and advice
iz be fad back to the Beard of Trustees. Tha two working committees each met a further three times.

In addifion, the Trustees have been provided with regular financial Information swch that they satisfied that they
maintain adequate ovarsight owver the Trusl's funds.

The purposa of this Finance, People & Rescurces working commitles is lo consder financial operation and
performance, internal controls framework and sudit, HR and Personnel (inciuding pay), Health and Safety,
Esfates Strategy and fo monitor the sirategic risk register.

Attendance during the year at meefings was as follows:

Trustes Mestings attended Dt of a possible
M J Beaumant 3 3
Mrs S Littlefas 2 3
Mr N Robinson 3 3
Mr C Wheatley 3 3
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FLY¥IMNG HIGH TRUST
(A company limited by guarantes)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED|

Review of value for money

As accounting officer, the Chief Execitive Officer has responsibility for ensuring that the Trust defivers good
value in the use of public resowrces, The accounting officer understands thal value for money refers o the

educational and wider societal outcomes achieved in return for the taxpayer resourcas received.

The accounting officer considers how the Trust's use of it resources has provided good value for money during
each academic vear, and reposis [o the Board of Trustess whers value for money can be improved, incheding
the use of benchmarking data whare approgriate. The accounting offcer for the Trust has delivered improved
walue for money during the year by:

Improving Educational Qutcomes

The principle aim of the Fling High Trust i to ensure long-term sustainable improvement 0 order to Impact
gignificantly on the §ife chances of the children and famiies within the parinership schools. The Trust B
committed to providing the wary highest quality teaching and learming o secune the best possible outcome for all
pupils. This is demonsirated by:

Targeted funds (2.9, pupil premium) are ring-fencad within spanding plans and used to improve
performance, attendance and behaviour by thosa pupils identified to recaiwe funding via those sources,
The effectivenass of thesea intersentions is evalusted through performanca data.

b Staffing structures are regularly reviewed and efficiencias identified in the deptoyment of stalfl without
Impacting negatively upon the delivery of education.

- Resources are targeted in fine with SIP priorifies ensuring that they are directed to where they ane maost
needed and are most effective in meating the educational needs.

. Co-ordinated and colaboratve working across the Trust schools and wider teaching schaol alliance.

] A half termiy Trust schoal risk group meeting to review the performance of each school in the Tolkowing
areas: attainment, lzarning and progress; teaching and l=aming; lkeadership and management; capacily 1o
improve; behaviour and safely; narrowing the gaps for vulnerable pugils; addilional support needs;
finance and business, pupil voice; buildings and engagement, Action plans are implernentad and
progress against these monltared,

Better Purchasing

Goods and sarvices purchased are done 5o 10 achieve “Value for Maoney' In terms of suitability, efficiancy, lime
ard cast. All confracts are reviewsd on an anmaal basis 1o enswe that they are fit for purpose and provids good
value in all aspecis, Examplss inciude:

" Implementing a trust wide review of insurance armngemants securing more effective cover and
generating cost savings across the Trust

. Securing other Trust wide contracts e.g. payroll, HR, heallth and safety compliance io get the best mix of
quality, service and cost.

. Exploring aliernative purchasing options (both on-line and direct suppliers) even for small purchases to
ensure vaiue for money

. Requiring suppliers to compete on the grounds of cost, quality and suitakility of goods and serviges,

. Competitive tendering procedures including opfion appraisal of the costs and benefits of altematives over
the longer term,

. Benchmarking financial performance against other scademy trusts and similar schools.
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FLYING HIGH TRUST
(A company limited by guarantes)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

Review of value for money (coentinuad)
Maximising Income Generation
Processes arein place to maximise income including:

Trust and central staff providing support and consultancy senvices to other schools.
Mandmising income generation opporiunities — extended services, |ettings, nursery provision.
The Trust's strategic leadership team regularly explores income generation opportunilies.

Reviewing Controls and Managing Risks

Manthly budget monioring reports are produced and reviewed by the Director of Business & Finance, GED,
Board of Trusiees, Local Governing Bodies and Head leachers and any necessary remedial aclion laken o
address any significant varances thal may have an impast on the budget out-tum,

Actions taxen to miligate risk ars sulined in the strategic risk register and the more detailed cperations] risk
ragistar maintained by the Trust's strategic leadership team. Both registers are reviewed annually and where
appropriate, professional advice e.g. Legal, HR, Firance has besn sought

Reviewing Operation to Maximisa Usa of Resources

The Trust sirategic leadership group review expenditura within @ach budget heading on a termiy bagis and
make adjustments based on the effectivaness of strategies introduced in previous years, curriculum offer and
any new sirategies identfied in tha Trust and Schoal Devetopment Plans.

The purpese of the system of intermal control

The system of intemal control is designed to manage risk io a reasonable level rather than o eliminabe all risk of
failure to achisve poficies, aims and objeclives. It can, therefore, only provide reasconable and nol atksolsle
assurance of effectivenass. The system of internal condrol is based on an on-gaing process designed to identify
and prioritise the rsks o the achievement of Trust policies, aims and objectves, o evaluate lhe lkelihood of
those risks being realised and the impact should thay ba realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively
and economically, The system of intemal controd has been in place in Flying High Trust for the year 1
September 2018 to 31 August 2098 and up to the date of spproval of the annusl report and financial
statements.

Capacity 10 handle risk

The Board of Trustees has reviewed the key risks to which the Trust is exposed together with the operating,
firancial and compliance contrals that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The Board of Trustees is
of the view that there is a formal angoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing the Trust's significant
rigks that has bean i place for the year 1 Saptember 2018 to 31 August 2078 and up to the data of approval of
the annual report and financial staterments. This process |s regulary reviewed by the Board of Trustess,
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FLYING HIGH TRUST
(& company limited by guaraniee)

GOVERMANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

The risk and control framework

The Trust's system of internal financial controf i based an a framework of regular management information and
adminisirative procedurss including the segregation of dulies and a system of delegation and accountabilify. In
particular, it includes:

" comprehensive budgeting and monkoring systems with an annual budget and pariedic financial reporis
which are reviewed and agreed by the Board of Trustees,

. regular reviews by the Board of Trustees and working committees of reports which indicate financkal

parformance against the forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works and expendifurs

programmes;

selting targets 1o measure financial and other performance;

clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capiial investment] guidelinas,

delegation of authority and segregation of duties; and

Identification and management of risks

Tha Board of Trusiees has considered the need for a specific iternal audit function and has decided 1o appaint
Schools and Academies Finance (SAAF) as internal auditor,

The internal auditor's roda incledes ghing adwvice an financial matters and performing a range of checks on tha
Trust's financial systems. In particular the checks caried out in the current period included testing of the

fodlowing systems:

* payrof;

purchaeing:

capital coniracts;

income;

accounting systems {including bank and control account recanciliations);
reporting to gowernors; and

- submission of returns 1o the ESFA.

& ¥ ¥ B @

On a termly basig, the internal auwditor reports fo the Board of Trustess on the operation of the systems of
contral and on the discharge of the Trustees' financial responsibiities.

SAAF, &5 intermal suditors, have defverad an ther planned schedule of work for the year ended 31 August
2018, and have confrmed that there have been no material breachas of the inlemal conlral systems.
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FLYIMNG HMGH TRUST
(& company limited by guarantes)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

Review of effectivenass

A5 accounting officer, the Chief Executive Officer has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of tha

gystem of imtarnal conirol. During the year in guestion the review has been mbormead by

. ihe work of the internal audior;

" fhe vk of the exlernal auditors;

] the financial management and povernancs seli-asaessmeant process,

] the work of the executive managers within the Truest who hawe responsibilily for the development and
maintenance of the internal controd framewaork:.

The accounting officer has been sdvised of the implcations of the result of their review of the system of internal
contral and 2 plan to address weaknesses and ensune continuous Imperovement of the system i in place.

Appraved by order of the members of the Board of Trusiees on 'Sﬂl 12 ! I Ql andd signed an thelr behalf
by:

Mr N Robinson Mr C Wheatley
Chair Accounting Offic
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FLYING HIGH TRUST
iA company limited by guarantes)

STATEMENT ON REGULARITY, PROPRIETY AND COMPLIANGE

As scoounting officer of Flying High Trust | have considerad my mesponsibility to notify the Trust Board of
Trusiess and the Education & Skils Funding Agency (ESFA) of material Irreguiarity, impropriety and non-
complisnce with terms and condifions of all funding received by the Trust, under the funding agreement in place
betwean the Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. As part of my consideration | have had due regard
fo the requirements of the Academies Financial Handbook 2018.

I confirm that | and the Trust Board of Trustess are able to identify any material irreqular or improper wse of all
funds by the Trust, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of funding under the Trust's

funding agreemeant and the Academies Financial Handbook 2018,

I canfirm that no metances of material imegulanity, impropriety or funding non-compliance have been dscovenad
to date. If any instances are identified after the daie of this atatement. these will be notified fo the Board of

Trusteas and ESFA

Ny

Mr C Wheatley
Accaunting Officer
Diate:
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FLYING HIGH TRUST
(& company limited by guarantae)

STATEMENT OF TRUSTEES" RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUIST 2018

The Trustess {who ere aleo the directors of the chartable company for ihe purposes of company [aw) are
responsible for preparing the Trustees' report and the financial statements in accordance with the Academias
Accounts Direction published by the Educafion & Skills Funding Agency, United Kingdem Accounting Sfandards
{United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and applicabds kw and regulations:

Company law requires the Trustees to prepare financlal statements for each financkal year, Linder company law
the Trusiees must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair
view of the siafe of affairs of the charilabla company and of its incoming resources and applicalion of rescurces,
inchuding its income and expenditure, for that period. In prepariyg these financial statemenis, the Trustess are
required to:

salect suilable accounting poiicies and then apply them consigtently,
obsenwe the methods and principles of the Charflies SORP 2015 and the Academies Accounts Direction
208 to 2015

. make judgments and accounfing estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

" siate wheiher applicable UK Accounting Standards have beesn followsesd, subject to any maberial
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

. prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless il is inappropriate o presume thal the
chariiable company will continueg in business.

The Trustees are responsible for keeping adequate sccounting records that are sufficient 1o show ard axplain
the charitable company's transactions and disclose with ressonable accuracy at any fime the financial position
of the charitable company and enable them to ensure thal the financial statements comply with the Cormpanies
Act 2006, They are also respansible for safeguarding the assels of the charitable company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and datection of fraud and other imegukarities.

The Trustees are responsible for ensuring that in s conduct and operalion the charilable company applies
financial and other controls, which conform with the requirements bolh of propriely and of good financial
managemeant, Thay are alzo responaibla for ensuring grants received from ESFA/DFE have been applied for the
purpazes intendad

The Trustess are regponsible for the mainftenance and integrily of the corporate and fmancial information
included on the chartable company's website, Legiskation in the United Kingdom govesning the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements may differ from legisiation in othar jurisdiclions.

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trusieess on ‘lg‘” 2—-;” ? and signed an its behalf
by

Mr N Rabinson

Chair
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FLYIMG HIGH TRUST
(A company limited by guarantes)

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF
FLYING HIGH TRUST

Cipinion

We have audited the financial statemenis of Flying High Trust (the 'rust) for the year ended 31 August 2079
which comprise the Statement of financkal activities, the Balance shest, the Staternent of cash Nows and the
related notes, including a summary of sgnificant accoundiing policies. The financikal reporting framewaork that has
been applied In their preparation s applicable lew, United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including Financial Reporting Standard 102 'The Financial Reporting
Standard applicable in the LK and Republic of Ireland’, the Charities SORP 2015 and the Academies Accounts
Direction 2018 1o 2019 issued by the Education & Skills Funding Ageancy.

In our opinion the financial statements:

" give a frue and fair view of the state of the Trusls affairs as &t 31 August 2018 and of its incoming
resources and application of resounces, including ks income and expenditure for the year then ended;

* hawve been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice; and

. have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2008, the Charities
SORP 2015 and the Academiss Accounls Dorechan 2018 ta 2019 Esued by the Educsation & Skilis

Funding Agency.
Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (LK) (I5As (UK)] and applicable
law. Our responsibilities under those slandards are further described in the Auditors’ responsibiities for tha audil
of the financial statements section of our reporl. Wi are independent of the Trust in accordance with the ethical
requiraments that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the United Kingdom, including tha
Fingncial Reporing Councils Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements. We bebiave thal the audlit evidence we have oblained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for owr opindan.

Conclusions relating bo going concern

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in refation to which the 15As [UK) require us to

repart o woau wiisre:

. the Trustees' use of the going concern basis of accounting In the preparation of the financial statements
i= not approprigte; or

. the Trustess have nol disclosed in the financlal statements any identified material uncerainlies that may
casl significant doubt about the Trust's abliy fo continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting
for a pericd of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised for
issUeS.
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FLYING HIGH TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF
FLYING HIGH TRUST [CONTINUED)

Other information

The Trustees are responsibie for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual reporl, othar than the financial statements and our Audilors’ repodt thereon. Other
information includes the Reference and administrative details, the Trustees' report including the Strategic report,
and the Governance statemen!. Our opinion on the financial statements doss not cover the other information
and, except fo the extent otharwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not exprass any form of assurance
conclusicn tharecn,

In connection with our audit of the financial stataments, our responsibility is to read the other infermation and, in
doing s0, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge oblained in the audil or otherwise appears fo be materialy misstated. i we antify such material
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required 1o determine whether there is a material
missiatemant in the financial statements or 3 material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there s a material misstatement of this other information. we are
required to report that fact,

We hawve nothing to repart in this regard.
Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audt:

. the information giver in the Trustees' report including the Strategic report for the financial year for which
the financial slatements are prepared i3 consistent with the financial stalements.

. the Trustees' report snd the Sirategic report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
requirernents.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

I the Bght of our knowledge and understanding of the Trust and its environment cbtained in the course of tha
audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Trustees’ repor including the Strategic repor.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006

requires us o report lo you if, in ocur opinion:

. adequate accounting records have not been kept, or retums adequate for our audit have not been
recaived from branches not visited by us; or

® the financial stetemants are not in agreement with the accounting records and retums; or
» cartain disclosures of Trustess' remuneration specified by law are nol made; of
® wie have not received all the information and axplanations we require for our audit,
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FLYING HIGH TRUST
{A company limited by guarantae)

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF
FLYING HIGH TRUST (CONTINUED)

Responsibilities of trustees

Az explained mare fully in the Trustess' responsiollities statement, the Trustees (who are also the direciors of
the Trust for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the preparation of the financial statemants and
for being satisfied that they give a true and fak view, a&nd for such internal control ss the Trustees determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
dus lo fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Trustees are responsible for assessing the Trust's ability to continws
as a golng concemn, disclosing, a5 applicable, matters related to going concarn and using the going concem
basis of accounting unless the Trustees either intend to liquidate the Trust or fo cease operationg, or have no
realistic afernative but fo do 5o

Auditors' responsibilities for the audit of the financial statemeants

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statemants as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due fo fraud or error, and to Bssue an Auditars” report thal includes our
opinion. Reagonable assurance is @ high level of assurance, but is not @ guarantes that an audit conducted in
accardance wih 1SAs (UK) will slways detect 8 matarial missiatemant when it exisls. Misstaternenis can anse
from fraud or emror and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic deciaions of users taken an the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of cur responsibilities for the awdit of the financial statements is located on the Financial
Reporiing Councils websie ab www frc org uklaudiorsresponsiililies. This description forms par of our

Auditors” repor.

Use of our report

This report is made solaly to the chariable Trusl's members, as a body, Inaccordance with Chaptar 3 of Part 16
of the Companies Act 2005, Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the charitable Trust's
members thosa maiters we are required fo state to them in an Auditors’ report and for no other purpose, Tao thea
fullest extent permitied by law, we do not accept or assume responsdility 1o armyone other than the charitable
Trust and its members, 25 a hody, for our audit work, far this report, ar far the apinons we have formead,

Robert Anderson (Senior stetutory awditor]
far and on behalf of

Strests Audit LLP

Chartered Accountanis & Stetutory Auditor
Tower House

Lucy Tower Street

Lircain

LINT 15

Drartm
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FLYING HIGH TRUST
(A company limited by guarantes)

INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO FLYING
HIGH TRUST AND THE EDUCATION & SHILLS FUNDING AGENCY

In sccordance with the terms of our engagement leller and further o the requirements of the Education & Skills
Funding Agency (ESFA) as inclsdad in the Academies Accounts Dirsctien 2018 fo 2018, we have carried out an
engagemeant to obfain Bmited assurance sbout whether the expenditure disbursed and income received by
Flying High Trust during the year 1 September 2018 to 31 August 2018 have been applied fo the purposes
identified by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them

This report i made solely to Flying High Trust and the ESFA in accordance with the ierms of our engagement
lelter. Our work has been underiaken 5o that we might state fo Flying High Trust and ESFA those matiers we
are required o state in & report and for no other purpose. To the fullast esdent permitted by law, we do naot
accepl or assume responsibility to anyane other than Flying High Trust and ESFA, for our work, for this report,
ar far the conclusion we have formed,

Raspective responsibilities of Flying High Trust's aceounting officer and the reporting
accountant

The accounting officer is responsible, under the requirements of Flying High Trusf's funding agresment with the
Secrefary of State for Education and the Academies Financial Handbook, extant from 1 Saptembar 2018, for
ensuring thal expenditure disbursed and Income receked iz applied for the purposes intendad by Parliament
and the financil transactions confarm ta the authorties which govemn them

Our respansibiliies for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession's ethical
guidance and are to obtain limited assurance and repord in accordance with our engagement lether and the
requiremenits of the Academies Accounts Direction 2018 to 2079, We repor fo you whether anything has come
to our sttention in carmying out our work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursad and
income received during the year 1 Seplember 2018 1o 31 August 2019 have not been applied to purposes
intended by Parliamant or that the financial ransactians do not conform o the authoritias which govarn them.

Approach

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Academies Accounis Direction 2018 to 2018 issuwed by
ESFA. We pedormed & mited assurance engagement as defined (n our engagement letter,

The objective of a limied assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and
expianations In order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence o express a negative canclusion an

regularity,

A Emited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and
consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that

might b identifiad i & reasonable assurance engagament. Accardingly, we do not express & posiive opinkon.

Cur engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and propriely of
tha Trust's income and expendilure.

Car audit works invohred:

. a review of the Trust systems and controls and confirmation of their operation and effectivenass during
the year,
| detailed review of purchasa fransactions confirming the purpose, value for money and thet appropriate
tendering / guotation procedures had been followed in line with the Trust finance policy; and

. a review of the Interral Audit repaoris,
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FLYIMG HIGH TRUST
(& company limited by guarantee)

INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO FLYING
HIGH TRUST AND THE EDUCATION & SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY (CONTINUED)

Conclusion
in the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggest in all material respecis the
expenditure disbursed and income received during the year 1 Seplember 2014 to 31 August 2019 has not been

applied to purposes intended by Pariament and the financial fransactions do not conform to the authaorities
which gowern tham.

Robert Anderson

Streets Audit LLP

Drate:
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FLYING HIGH TRUST
(& company limited by guarantaa)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES (INCORPORATING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGLIST 2018

Income from:
Dionaticns end capital
grants: ]
Transter on
CONWErSIon
Cther donationa and
capital grants
Charitable activities &
Teaching schoals 30
Other trading acthilies &
Investments T

Total income

Expenditure on:

Charitable activities B.Aa
Teaching schoals 8,30

Total expenditura

Net income |
{expenditure)

Transfers between

funds 19
Het movement in

funds before other
recognised

gainsi{losses)

Other recognised
gainsi{losses):

Actuarial lboesas on

defined benafit

pension schemes 26

Met movement in
funds

Restrictad

Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Taotal Tafal
funds funds funds funds funds
2019 2018 2099 20449 2048
E ) E £ £
234 375 (1,415,132) 10,841,000 9,660,243 6362 733
- 76,212 892,916 1,068,128 1476533
1,017,810 30,370,437 a 11,388,247 27,120,509
- 893 828 - 893,828 934 584
333,622 210,270 = 543 892 48 234
2,614 - - 2,614 2 648
1,588 421 30,135,616 11,833 916 43 857 952 36,285 587
1,568,730 42,055,578 1,687,272 36,211,640 30 174 270
. 877,283 4 877,293 1,032,045
1,668,790 32,832 871 1,587,272 36,088,933 31206379
19,831 (2,797 286) 10,246 644 7,468,019 5078 362

{19,521) {68,136) 85,767 -
= (2,B63,382) 10, 332411 7488019 5078 362
- {3,681,000) - {3,661,000) 3 879,000
- (6,524, 353) 10,332 411 3,808,019 8 058 362

—————————— I ——3
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FLYING HIGH TRUST
(A company limited by guarantae)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES (INCORPORATING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT)

(CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGLIST 2018

Restrictod
Unrestrictad Restricted fixed assal Total Total
funds funds funds funds funas
2019 20158 2013 2018 2098
Wate E F E E £
Reconciliation of
funds:
Tedal funds Brought
forsrard & (9,675,426) 63662676 43,887,248 34,025 687
et miovemeant in
funds . (6,524,392) 10,332,411 3,808,019 8,958,352
ST Cur . (16198,818) 63895086 47,695,268 43,847,249

forward

The Sistemant of financial activities includes all gains and loeses recognised In the year,

The notes on pages 28 to 67 form par of these financial statarments.
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FLYING HIGH TRUST

(& company limited by guarantes)
REGISTERED NUMBER: D80TE37T4

BALANCE SHEET
AS AT M AUGUST 2048

Fixed assets
Tangibde ety

Current asseis

Debiors
Cash at bank and in harmd

Creditare: amounts falling duwa within cna

year

Met current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Creditors: amounts fallng dus after more

than ane year

Met assets excluding pension lability
Defined benefit pension scheme liability 26

Total met assets

2018
Mote £
15 63,184 885
63,384,889
18 3,096,384
5,188,014
8,282,398
17 (3,681,399)
- 4,600,968
7,905,868
18 {3,620)
67,902,268
(20,287,000

47 695, 268

2018

32,908,045

52,308 045

2,887 302
3,947 663

6 834,965

(2 803, 236)
4,021,729

54,838,774

(4,525)

56,935,249
{13,048,000)

43,887 248
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FLYING HIGH TRUST
{8 company limited by guarantas)

BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED)
AS AT 31 AUGUST 2018

2015 2018
Hote E £
Funds of the Trust
Restricted funds:
Fixed azaet funds 18 63,895,086 53 562,675
Rasiriciad incoma funds 14 4087182 3 372574
Resiricied funds excluding pension asset 18 67,082 268 5, 935 249
Pension reserve 1% [20,287,000) {13, 048000
Total restricted funds 18 47,695 268 43 887 240
Unrestricted income funds 18 -
Total funds 47 695, 268 4.3 587 249
_ | —_—

The financial statements on pages 23 to 67 were approved by the Trustess, and authorised for issue
en ,-'{glr’,rglf [ E—T and ave signed on their behalf, by:

iDL

The: notes on pages 28 to 67 form part of thase financial statements.
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FLYING HIGH TRUST
(& company limited by guarantae)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 21 AUGLIST 2018

2019 2018
Note £ P
Cash flows from operating activities
Ned cash provided byiused in) cparating activibes 21 539130 (102875}
Cazh flows from investing activities 23 702,101 342974
Cash flows from financing activities 22 {2,E80) 4. 854}
Change in cash and cash equivalents in the year 1,238,361 235,245
Cash and cash equivalents st the beginning of the year 3,847 663 2 3 TIZ418
Cash and cash equivaleniz al the end of the year 24 5186014 3947 653

The notes on pages 28 fo 67 form part of these financial siaterneants
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FLYING HIGH TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

1.

Accounting policies

1.1

1.2

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied consistenily,
except whare noted), judgments and key sources of estimation uncaertainty, is set out below,

Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements of the Trust, which is & public benefit entity under FRS 102, have been
prepared under the historic cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard
Applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102}, the Accounting and Reporting by Charities:
Slaternent of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing thedr accounts in accordance
with tha Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102)
(Charitias SORP (FRS 102)), the Academies Accounts Direction 2018 to 2019 issued by ESFA, tha
Charities Act 2011 and the Companies Act 2006,

Flying High Trust meets the definition of 2 public benefit enfity under FRS 102,
Gioing concerm

The Trustess assess whather the use of going concemn i3 appropriate e, whether there are amy
material uncertainties related o svents or condithons that may cast significant doubt on the ability of
the Trust to continue as a going concern. The Trusiees make this assesament in respect of a period
of at least ocne yvaar from the date of avthorisation for issue of the financial statements and have
concluded that the Trust has adequate resources to coninue in operational existence for the
foreseaabls futura snd there are no matenal uncerainties about the Trusts ability o continue a5 a
going concern, thus they confinue fo adopt the geing concern basls of accouniing in preparing the
financial siatements.
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FLYING HIGH TRUST
{A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FIMANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

Accounting policies (continued)

13

14

Income

All incoming resources are recognised when the Trust has entitlerment to the funds, the receipt is
prabable and the amount can be measured reliabhy.

Grants

Brants are included o the Statement of financial activities on a receivable basis. The balance of
income received for specific purposes but not expanded during the period & shown in the relevant
funds on the Balance shesl. Where income i received in advance of meeting any performance-
refaled conditions thare is not unconditional entitternent to the income and its recognition iz deferred
and included in crediors as deferred income unfil the performance-relafed conditions are met,
Wiare eqlillemant cocurs before incomea is receivad, the income is accrued.

Ganeral Annual Grant is recognised in ful in the Statement of financial activities in the year for which
il is recenvable and any abatement in respect of the year is deducted from income and recognised as
a Hability.

Capital grants are recognised in full when there is an unconditional enfitlement to the grant, Linspent
amounts of capial grantz sre reflected in the Batance sheet in the restricted feed asset fund. Capital
grants are recognised when there is entitlement and are not deferred owver the e of the assel an
which they are expanded.

Donations

Donations are recognised on & recelvable basls [where there are no performance-related conditions)
where the receipd is probable and the amount can be reliably measured.

Other Income
Dther Incomse, including the hire of facillies, is recognised m the year it is raceivable end to tha
axtant the Trust has provided the geods or sarvices.

Transfer on conversion

Where assets and ligbilities are received by the Trust on conversion to an academy, the fransferned
assels are measured af far value and recognised in the Balance sheet at the peoint when the risks
and rewards of cwnership pass to the Trest, An equal amount of income |5 recognised as a iransfer
on corsersion within ‘Income from Denations and Capital Grants' to 1he net assets receied.

Expenditura

Expendifure |z recognised once there |2 a legal or consiructive obligation to fransfer econcmic
benefit to & thid parly, il is probable thal a transfer of economic benefils will be required in
getthement and the amount of the obligation can be measured refiably. Expendilure is classified by
activity, The cosls of each activity are made up of the total of direct cosis and shared cosis,
including support costs involved in undartaking each activity.

Charitable activities

These ara costs incurred on the Trust's educational operations, including support cosls and costs
relating to the governance of the Trust apportioned to charitable activities,

All resources expended are inclusiee of recoveratle VAT,
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Accounting policies [continued)
1.5 Interest receivable

Interast on funds held on deposlt s included when receivable and the amounl can be measured
raliably by the Trust; this is normally upon nefification of the interest paid or payable by the institution
with whom the funds are deposited.

1.6 Taxation

The Trust s considerad to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule & of the Finance Act 2010
and therefore it meals the defindion of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposas,

Accordingly, the Trust i potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains
received within categories covered by Part 11, chapter 3 of the Corporation Tax Acl 2010 or Section
2585 of the Taxafion of Chargeable Gasns Act 1582, to the extent that such income or gains are
applied exclugively to charitable purposes.

1.7 Tanglible fixed assets

Azzets costing £1,000 or more are capitalised as tangible fived assets and are camed at cost, net of
depracistion and any provision for mpairmant.

¥ihera tangible fived assets hawe been acquired with the alg of specific granis, sither from the
government ar from the private sector. they are included m the Balance sheet ab cost and
deprectaied over thelr expected useful economic He. Where there are specific conditions attached
ta the funding requiring the continued use of the asset, the related grants are creditad to & restricted
fived asset fund in the Statement of financial activities and carrled forward in the Balance shest
Depreciation on the relevant assets is charged direclly to the resiricted fixed asset fund in the
Statement of financial activities. Where tangible fived assets have been acquired with unrestricted
funds, depreciation on such assets is charged to the unrestricted fund.

Depreciation s provided on all tangible fived assets other than freshold land and assels under
construction, at rales calcylated to write off the cost of each asset on a straight-line basis over is
expecied useful e, as follows:

Depreciation is provided an the following bases;

Long-term leasehold propety - 1% straight line

FProperty improvements = 4% straight line
Furnitura and equipment =« 20% straight line
Computer equipment - 25% straight line
Motor vehiclas - 20% straight lne
Agzats under construction = Mo dapreciation

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicale
that the carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable, Shortfalls between the carrying
value of fixed ssasts and their recoverable amounts are recegnised as mpairments. Impaiment
Insses are recognised in the Statement of financial activities.
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Accounting policies (continued)

1.8 Debtors

Trage and other deblors are recogmissd st the settlement amount after any trade discount offered,
Prepaymenis are valued gt the amount prepaid net of any trads discounts duse,

1.5 Cash at bank and in hand

Cash at bank and in kand ncludes cash ard shodd-term highly liguid imeaestments with a shor
maturity of three months or lese from the date of acquisition or opening of the deposit or simifar
account.

1.10 Liabilities

Lisbilities are recognised when there is an obligation at the Balance sheet date as a result of a past
event, it is probable thal a fransfer of economic benefit will be required In settlement, and tha
amount of the sattlement can be estimated reliably. Liabilties are recognised at the amount that the
Trust anticipates it will pay 1o settie the debt ar the armount 4 has received as advanced paymeants for
the goods or sanvices it must pravide

1.41 Financial instruments

The Trust enly halds basic financial instrumants as defined in FRS 102, The financial assets and
financial lkabilities of the Trust and their measurement bases ane as follows:

Finamsisl assets - Irade and other debbars are basic fmancial instruments and are debd mstrumants
measured al amorlised cost as delailed in note 18, Prepayments are not financial instruments,

Cagh af bank - Is classfind as a basic fimancial instrumant and is measurad at face valua.

Financi fahiities - trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are fimencisl instruments, and are
measured at amortised cosl as detailed in notes 17 and 18, Taxzation and social security are not
inchedad in the financial instruments disclosure definiion. Deferred income is not deemed fo be 8
financial liability, as the cash setflement has already taken place and there is an obligation to deliver
sarvices rather than cash or another fimancial mstrument.

Caoncessionary koana have inidially been recognised and measuvred at the amound received, The
carrying amount has been adjusted in subsequent years to reflect repayments and any aconed
interest and adjusted if necessary for any impairment,

112 Operating leases

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Staternent of financhal activities on a straight
lime basis over the lease term.
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Accounting policies [continued)

1.13 Pensions

Refirement benefits to emplovess of the Trust are provided by the Teachers’ Penslon Scheme
{'TPS") and the Local Government Pension Scheme ("LGPST). These are defined banefil schemes.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and confributions are calculated so as to spread the cost of
pensions over employees’ working lives with the Trust in such a way that the pension cost is a
substantialy level percentage of curent and future pensionable payroll. The comtributions are
determined by the Government Actuary on the basis of quadrennial valualion® using a prospective
unil credlt methad, TPS is an unfundsed multi-employer scheme with no underlying assets to assign
between employers. Consequently, the TPS s treated as a defined conbribution scheme for
accounting purposes and the contributions recognised in the pericd to which they relate.

The LGPS is a funded muli-employer schema and the assets are held separatsly from those of tha
Trust in separale rusies adminisiered funds, Pension scheme assels are measured at fair valua
and [Eabilities are measursd on an aciuarial basia wsing the projected wnit cradit method and
discounted at a rate aquivalent to the current rate of refum on 8 high quality corporale bond of
aquivalent term and currency o the llabiltes, The actuarial valuastions are oblained at least
triannially and are updaled at each Balance sheet date, The amounts charged to operating surplus
are tha current sarvice costs and the costs of scheme introductions, benefit changes, setilements
and curtailments. They are included as par of siaff cosls ag incurred. Net interest on the net defined
benafit liabiitwassael & also recognised i the Statement of financial activities and comprises the
interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and inferest income on the scheme assels, calculated
by multiplying the fair value of the scheme assels af the beginning of the period by the rate used to
discount the banefit obligations. The difference between the interest income on the scheme assets
and the actual return on the scheme assels & recognised in other recognizsed gains and lossss,

Actuarial gains and losses ara recognised immediately in other recognised gains and lossas.

1.14 Conversion to an academy trust

The comversion from a state mainisined school o a Trust nvobeed the tranafer of identifiable assaty
and Babilities and the operation of the school for ENIL consideration. The substanca of the iransfer is
that of a gift and it has been accounted for on that basis as set out balow.

The assets and liabilfies fransferred on comversion o the Trust have bean valued at thelr falr valee,
The fair value has been derived based on that of eguivalent items. The amounts have been
recognised under the appropriste Balance sheet categores, with a cofresponding amoumt
recognised in Income from Daonations and Capital Grants in the Statement of financial activities and
analysed under unrestricted funds, restricted general funds and restricted fixed asset funds.

Further detafls of the fransaction are set out in note 3.
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Accounting policies [continued)

1.15 Fund accounting

Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used lowards mesting any of
the charitzble objects of the Trust at the discration of the Tresiees.

Restricted fived asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capilal purposes
imposed by the funders where the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restriclions imposed by the
funden'domor &nd inchede grants from the Department for Education Sroup.

Iméestiment imcome, gains and losses are sllocated to the appropriate fund.

Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgment

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on hisiorical experience and other
factors, Including expectabions of fulure evenis that are believed to be reascneble under the
cireumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions:

The Trusl trusl makes estimales and assumplions conceming the fulure, The resulting accounting
estimates and assumplions will, by definition, sekdom equal the related actual results, The estimates and
assumplions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carmying amounts of
assels and labifies within the next financial year are discussed below

The presant value of the Local Government Pension Schema defined benefit liability depends on a
number of factors that are determined on an actuaral basls using a wvarlety of assumptions. The
assumptions used jn defermining the net cosl or income for pensions include the discount rale. Ary
changes in these assumgptions, which are disclosed in note 28, will impact the carmying amount of the
pansion lability. Furthermore a roll forward approach which projects results from the latest full aciuanial
valuation performed ab 31 March 2015 has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions Eability at 31
August 2019, Any differences between the figures derived from the roll forward approach and a full
actuarial valuaton would impact on the camying emount of the pension liabilfy.

Tamgible fixed assels are recognised &t cost or valuation, less accumulated depreciation any any
impairmant, Depreciation takes place over the estimated useful ife, down to the assessed residual value.
The camying amount of the Trust's fked assets is tesied as soon 88 changed conditions show that a
nesed for impairment has arisen

Paga 33



FLYING HIGH TRUST
iA company limited by guarantees)

MOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE ¥EAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

Conversion to an academy trust

On 1 September 2018 Alderman Pounder Infand and Mursery School converted to academy trust status
under the Academias Act 2010 and all the operations and assets and liabilities were iransferred io Flying
High Trust from Mottinghamshire County Council for ENIL consideration,

The transfer has been accounted for as a combination thal s In substance a git The assets and
liabdities transferred were valued at their fair value and recognised in the Bakance sheel under the
appropriate heading with a corresponding nat amount recognised as @ net gain in the Statement of
financial aciiviies as Income from Donalions and Capial Grants - transfer from local authority on
COnYersan,

The following table sets out the fair values of the identifiable assels and liabiiies transferred and an
anafysis of their recognition in the Statement of financial activities.

Restricted
Unrestricted  Restricted fixed asset Total
funds funds funds funds
E E E £
Tangible fixed assets
Leasehold land and buildings B - 2 476,000 2 176,000
Current assets
Cash - rapresanting budget surplus on
LA funds 108,471 - - 108,471
Local Government Pengion Scheme Deficit - (529,000) . [5:29,000)
Mat assats/{liabilities) 108,471 (520,000) 2475000 1,754,471

Leasehold property has besn transferred to the Trust under & 125 year lease from the local authority.
Leasehald property has been valued on conversion based on the current insurance valuation.

The Local Government Pension Scheme Deficit valuation at comversion is based on the report received
from the actuary.
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Canversion to an academy trust (continued)

On 1 Dacember 20ME Emehale Infant School converted 1o acadermy trus! stalus under the Academies
Act 2010 and gl the operations and assels and labilities were iransferred to Flying High Trust from
Mottinghamshire Cownty Council for EMIL considaratian.

The tramsfer has been sccounted for as a combination thal is in substance a gift The assets and
liabdities fransfermed were wvalued at their fair value and recognised m the Bakance shesl under the
appropriate heading with & cormesponding net amount recognised as a nel gain in the Statement of
financial activities as Income from Donations and Capial Grants - transfer from local authority on

COMVErSicn,

The following table sets out the fair values of the identifizble assels and liabflies fransferred and an
enalysis of their recogndion in the Statement of financial activities.

Restriched
Unrastricted  Restricted fixed asset Total
funds funds funds funds
£ £ £ E
Tangible fixed assets
Leasehold and and bulkiings - - 1,697,000 1,697,000
Current assets
Cash - rapresenting budget surplus on
LA funds 45,136 - - 45,136
Cazh - represeniing budget surplus on
other school funds - 2,BEY - 2,867
Local Government Pension Scheme Deficit - (386, 000) - (366,000}
Met assets/{liabilities) 45,136 (383,133} 1687000 1,378,002

Leasehold property has been fransferred fo the Trust under a 125 year lease from the local authority,
Leasehold property has been valued on conversion based on the current insurance valuation.

The Local Govamment Pension Scheme Deficit valuation at conversion is based on the repaort received
fram tha actuary.
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Conversion to an academy trust (continued)

On 1 July 2012 Brooklands Primary School converted to academy trust status under the Academies Act
2010 and all the operations and assels and labilfies were transferred to Flying High Trust from
Dertyshine County Councl for EMIL consideralion.

The fransfer hes been accounted for s a combinalion thal |5 in substance a gift The assets and
liabdities transferred were vakesd at thair fair vablue and recognised in the Balance sheet under the

appropriate heading with a corresponding net amounl recognised as a net gain in the Statement of
financial sctiviies as Income from Donalions and Capital Grants - transfer from local autharity on

canersion.

The following table sets out the fair velues of the identifiable assets and kabilties transferred and an
analysis of their recognifion in the Statement of financial activities.

Restricted
Unrestricted  Restricted fixed asset Total
funds funds funds funds
E E E £
Tangible fixed assets
Leazshold kand and buildings = £ B.980,000  &969,000
Current assets
Cash - representing budget surplus on
LA funds 80,768 - - 80,765
Cash - representing budpgef surplus an
ather school funds - 10,001 - 10,001
Local Gavarnmen! Pension Schaeme Deficit - {533,000} - {533,000)
Met assets/{liabilities) 80,768 {522,889} G.08R,000 6,526,770

= ey |ty

Leasehold property has been transferred to the Trust under a 125 year lease from the local authonty.
Leasahold property has besn valued on conversion based on the currant insurance valuation.

The Local Government Pension Scheme Defict valuation at conversion s based on the repart received
from the actuary,
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Income from donations and capital grants

Amounts Transfermed on Conwversion

Dianations
Capitad Grants
e T

Armounts Transferred on Conwversion

Donations
Capital Grants
Grants

Restricted

Unrestricted  Restricted fixed asset Total
funds funds funds funds

2018 2019 2019 2019

E E £ £

234375 (1,415132) 10,841,000 9,660,243
234375 [1,415132) 10,841,000 9,860,243

- TE,212 11,671 84,183

- - Qa0 545 880,945

- Th.212 552 216 1,068,128

234,375 (1,338 820) 11833916 10,728.3T1
i

Restricted

Limnestriched Rezsidrled  fived assal Total
feircls funds funds funds
20148 2098 2018 2018
£ £ £ E

51, 789 (708 055 8 525 0ad 6 262 733
547 789 (FO4.055 B 525000 6 362,733

- ir123 - 17,723

- 1,382 310 1382310

- ir, 150 - 17,150

- 34 273 1. 382 310 1,476,583

S T8G9 (869, 783 F.807. 310 .77 314

i ——— —_——————  E—
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Funding for the Trust's educational operations

Unrestricted  Restricted Tatal
funds funds funds
2019 2019 2048
E E £
ESFA Grants
Gensral Annual Grant (GAG) " 231495448 23,495 448
Oifar ESFEA, Grants - 3.522 636 3,622,836
s 27 08 284 27,018,284
Other Government Grants
Lacal Authority Incomea - 3.083033 3,083,033
- 3,083,033 3,093,033
Crther Funding
Otier [ncone 1.047.810 258 120 1,276,930
107,810 259,120 1,276,930
1,017 810 30370437 31,388,247
Unrestncted Resincled Tofal
fimds funds firiels
2048 2018 2018
E £ £
ESFA Grants
GGanaral Annual Grant (GAG) - 22817078 20.B17.079
Oihar ESFA Grants 2 835 287 2,935 287
23752 366 23,752 366
Other Government Grants
Local Authority Incorme - 2330844 2 330,844
2,330 844 2330, 844
Other Funding
ther income Tar,018 250,37 1,037,365
Far.ong 280371 1,037 388
A0 26333581 27120588
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Income from other trading activities

Unrestricted  Restricted Tatal

funds funds funds

2019 2019 2018

E £ E

Extended Sendices 218,800 - 218,800
Hire of Facilitias 114,822 - 114,822
Englizh Hub . 17378 17.378
Insurance Claims - 162 8832 182, 892

333,622 210,270 543,892

Linrastrictao Hestrcled Tofal

funos fLimals fewncts

208 20718 2018

£ E E

Extended Services 130,520 - 130320
Hire of Facilities 115,233 = 113233
Insurance Claims - 204 081 204 051

244,153 204,081 448,234

Investment income
Unrestrictad Total Todal
fumds funds fmcls
2018 20148 2078
E £ £
Bank Interest Recaived 2614 2,614 2648
e ————
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Expenditure
Staff Costs Premises Other Total
2018 2019 2018 2019
£ E E E
Educational Operations!
Diract Coels 20,937,251 - 2253472 23,190,713
Support Costs 5,333,518 2,568 743 38188656 12,020,917
Teaching Schoal 246 812 - 630 481 B77,253
26,517 581 2 Be8 743 G.702e08 26,088,313
==
Siaff Costs Fremisas Cithey Tolal
2018 2018 2018 2018
£ E £ £
Educational Operations;
Direct Cosls 18,484, 495 * 1,855 352 20,435,847
Support Caostg 4,274 686 2, 1B B8 3278 778 8734 423
Taaching School 228,743 = 802 308 1,032 049
22,988,924 2, 180050 5036438 31,206.319
e
Analysis of expenditure by activities
Activities
undertakan Support Total
directly costs funds
20148 20149 20149
E E E
Educalional Operations 23180723 12020517 36,211,840
R —
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Analysis of expenditure by activities (continued)

Acfivitias

undertaken Suppaor Tofal

directly costs furnds

2018 20ve 2018

E £ £

Educational Operations 20,438 847 9734427 30174270
_ = =

Analysis of direct cosis

Total Tofal

funds furmels:

2019 2018

£ £

Stalf Costs 20,168,700 17 507 362
Educational Supplies 481 423 442 039
Techaology Costs 244,848 195,995
Educational Wigits and Schood Fund Expanditure 504,315 421,674
Other Educational Services 1,214,713 1,301,280
Indirect Employse Expensas 585,726 EFT 497
23,180,723 20430 847

. ee——————

Page 41
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Analysis of expenditure by activities [continued)

Analyziz of suppor costs

Pension Finance Coat

Stall Costs

Depreciation

Iredirect Employes Expenses
Maintenance

Cleaning

Rates and LMilities
Insurance

Technodogy Cosls

Other Support Costs

Lagal and Professional Costs
Catering

Governance Cosls

Met income{expenditune)

Met incomaiexpenditure) for the vear includes:

Ciperating lease rentals

Dapreciaticn of tangitle fined assets

Fees paid to auditors for;

- audit
= athey sErices

Total Tatal
funds funds
2049 2014

E £
354,000 37E 000
5,285 575 4257172
64T 336 554 304
33,116 41,796
1,481,986 Q449 312
872,671 6256, 8348
551,103 465 G648
162,083 135,641
328,951 288,648
764,400 569 948
150,553 170 588
1499672  1.208671
82,628 81,234
12,020,817 9 734 423
———
20189 2018

£ £

83,129 74,056
47,335 559, 398
25,800 25,250
15,830 14,250
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11.

Staff costs

a, Staff costs

Stafl cosls during the year were as follows:

Wages and sakaries
Soclal security cosls
Pension costs

Agency staff costs
Siaff restructuring costs

Apprenticeship levy

Staff restruciuring costs comprise;

Redundancy payments
Severance paymenis
Cter resiructuning costs

2018 2078

£ £
19,061,326 16 367084
1,680,542 1448 360
4,860,220 4,174 533
25,702,087 71988277
669,685 @27, 105
50,304 9(1, 583
05,496 82 959
26 517,581 22 9868924
2018 2018

£ £

46,434 48933
3,870 40,000

- 1,650

50,304 80 583
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.

Staff costs [continued)
b. Non-statutory/non-contractual staff severance payments

Included in staff restructuring costs are non-statutory / non-contractual severance payments totalling
£3.B70 (2018 - E40,000). The expense represents a single severance paymant in the year (2018 - onej.

c. Btaff numbers
The average number of parsons employed by the Trust dunng the year was as follows:

M8 2018

MNo. M

Teachers 330 293
Administration and suppart G650 G52
Management 4 4
1,024 549

d. Higher paid staff

The number of employess whose employes benefits (excluding employer pension costs) exceeded
EG0 000 was,

2018 2018

Ho. fio,

In the band 80,001 - £70,000 12 12

In the band £70,001 - £80,000 B ]

In the band £30,001 - £50,000 3 1

In the band £120,001 - £130,000 - i
In the: band £140,007 - £150, 000 1 -

e. Key management personnel

The kay management parsornal of the Trust comprise the drectors and the senior managemeant team on
page 1, The total amount of employea benefits {including employer pension confributions) received by
key management peraonnel for their senvices to the Trust was £439,000 (2018 - £376,500).
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12, Central services

The Trust has provided the fallowing central servicas to its academies during the year

financial senices,
educational support services,
IT support sarvices, and
athes services as they ansa,

The Trust charges for these services an the following basis:
5% of the ESFA Ganeral Annual Grant Funding,

The actual amounts charged during the year were ag follows:

2014 2018
E £

Alderman Pounder Infant and Mursery Schood 40,247 -
Beeston Fields Primary School and Mursery 69,780 68,3291
Bitsthorpe Flying High Academy a7 562 37.907

Brooklands Primary Schoaol 11,726 -
Cotgrave Candleby Lane Schoal 87,612 98,617
Edwalton Primany School 73,341 73, 425

Emehale infant School 35,550 -
Emehale Junior School 45,908 46, 322
FHA Ladybrook 72,981 68, 755
Greemwood Primary and Mursery School BO,528 7 842
Ereytharn Primary School 55,540 58 TH2
Haddon Primary and Nursery School 38,957 37,582
Hillside Primarny and Mursery Schaol T8.294 Th, 78S
Horsendale Primary School 40,611 41,072
Kilksick Junbor School 43242 J9 453
Kirkstead Junior Academy 42,108 22,839
Leamingion Primany and Mursery Academy B84 355 81,347
Mapplewslls Primary and Nursery School 46,536 43,462
Peafield Lane Academy 58,711 58,036
Pinxton Village Schools: John King Infant Academy 26,972 17,970
Pinxton Village Schools: Longwood Infant Academy 14,705 8245
Porchesier Junior School 35,748 34,701
Slanstead Primary and Mursery School 43245 A4, 222
Total 1,176,365 1037, 1715
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13.

14,

Trustess’ remuneration and expenses

One or more Trustees has bean pad remunération or has received other benefits from an employment
with the Trust Tha Chief Executive Officer and other staff Trustees only receive remufaration in respect
of sarvices they provide underaking the roles of Chief Executive Officer and staff members under their
condracts of eamployrment. The value of Trustees’ remuneration and other benefis was as follows:

2019 2018

£ £

Mr C Wheatley Remuneration 140,000 - 125 000 -
145,000 130 000

Pensian contributicns paid 20,000 - 20,000 -

25,000 25,000

Dwring the year ended 31 August 2018, expenses totaling £2.058 were rembursed or paid directly to 1
Trustee (2018 = £2.140 to 1 Trusfes), Expenses paid relate to mileage and other costs incurred in
undertaking the direcior's employved rale.

Trustees' and Officers’ Insurance

In accordance with normal commercial practice, the Trust has purchased insurance o protect Trustess
and officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions accurring whilst on academy
business, The insurance provides cover up to £2,000,000 on any ona claim. The cost for the year ended
3 August 2019 is not separately identifiable from the total insurance premium paid,
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FLYING HIGH TRUST
{& company limited by guarantee)

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

16,

16.

Tangible fixed assets (continued)

included within kang-term lzasehold property is land with & value of £4,537, 700 which is not depreciated

Whare available, long-tarm leasshold propary has been valued in fine with the valuation provided to the
academies on conversion by the ESFA. Colgrave Candleby Lane Schoal has been valued in line with a
valuation repart prepared by Fisher Hargreaves Proctor gated 19 Movember 2012 on a depreciated
replacemeant cost basis. Other long-term leasehold properly has been valued in line with insurance

walustions taking re-instatement costs info consideration.

Al leassahold properfies are held under 125 vear leases from the local authority,

Debtars
2018 Zaid
E £

Due within one year

Trade debiors 260,148 148 316
Other debtors 1,857 452 2070458
Frepaymants and accrued income 878,784 728, 528
3,008,384 2 887,502

Included in other debiors is WAT recoverable of £1.848 096 (2018 - £2 005, 724)
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FLYIMG HIGH TRUST
(& company lmited by guaraniee)

MNOTES TO THE FINAMNCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2015

17,

Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year

CHhar loans

Trade creditors

Ciher laxation and social security
Other credifors

Accruals and deferred incoma

Deferred incoma:

Defarrad income at 1 Beptember
Resources deferred during the year
Armounts relessed from previous paricde

Deferred income at 31 August

2019 2018

£ £

$05 2 880
887,923 622 004
426,214 357,002
424 117 350,831
1,942,240 1,470,519
3,684,388 2803 236
2019 2018

E E
1,166,106 710,333
1479612  1.150,508

{1,129,630) (694,735
1,516,088 1,168 106

At the balance shaet dat=, the Trust had received amounts in adeance for Universal Infant Free School
heals, High Leaming Meeds Income, Teaching School Grants, Rates Relief, School Improvement Grants

and Academy Start Up Funding,

Other loans represent Safix loans recelved to fund Trust projects. The loans are interest-free, unsesured

and repayable by instalments
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FLYIMG HIGH TRLUST
(A company limited by guaraniee)

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

18.

Creditors: Amounts falling due after mone than one year

Cither ioans

Included within the above are amounts falling due as follows:

Beatween one and bwo L
Other loans

Between two and five years
Oither loans

Owver five years
Other loans

2019 2018
E £
3,620 4,525
2018 2018
£ £

905 905
2,716 2715
. 905

The aggregate amount of abiities payable or repayable wholly or in part more than frve years after tha

reporting date is:

Fayable or repayable by instalments

Cither lcans represent Salix lcans received to fund Trust projects. The loans are interesi-free,

and repayable by instalments

2018 20718
3 E

- 05

- 805
ursacured
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FLYING HIGH TRUST
(& company limited by guarantes)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGLIST 2019

18.

Statement of funds (continued)
The specific purposes for which the funds are o be applied are as follows:

Unrestricted Funds:

Surplus on Conversion - regresenis those resources received on comsersion which may be used
fowards masding any of the objects of the Trust st the discretion of the directors. The policy of the Tnust is
o uitilize thesa funds in priarity to current year GAGS income.

General Funds - represants olher resources received during the year whoih may be used towards
mesting any of the objects of the Trust at the discretion of the direciors

Restricted Funds:

General Annual Grant (GAG) - mads up of a3 number of different fending streams from the ESFA, all of
which ara ioc be used to cover the running costs of the academies,

Other ESFA Grants - represents other funding received from the ESFA recetved for specific purposes.

Other Government Grants - represents grants recened from other Govemment sources receised for
spatific purposss

Cther Income F Schools Funds - represents clher income received which must be used for the specific
purposas intznded,

Teaching Schools - represents income and expendiurs relaling o the Teaching Schools. The Teaching
Schools fund carry foreard comprises fng-fenced collaborative grants from NCTL (Mational College of
Teaching and Learning) which are already commitied 1o be spent on the projects and initiatives for which

they were awarded.

Pension Reserve - represents the current defic balance of the Local Government Pension Scheme
(LEPS),

Restricted Fiked Asset Funds:

MEV of Fixed Assels - represents the net book vabse of fixed assets fransferred on conversion and
subsequently acquired from the Trust's funding streams,

ESFA Capital Grants /| Other Capital Donations - represente funding received specifically for capital
PUNpOSas.

Transfars:

Transfers in the funds analysis represent fixed assel addilions from GAG Income, fransactions babwean

the Teaching School and Trust academies and o ransfer unspent DFG on conversion from unresiricted
funds to restricted fived asset funds.

Under the funding agresment with the Secratary of State the Trust was nol subject 1o a limil on the
amount of GAG It could carry forward at 31 August 2012,
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FLYIMG HIGH TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

19,

Statement of funds [continued)
Total funds analysis by academy

Fund balances at 31 August 2013 were allocated as lollows;

Aldesman Pounder Infant and Nursary School
Beaston Fislds Primary School and Mursery
Bilstharpe Flying High Academy

Brocklands Primary School

Cotgrave Candisty Lane School

Edwaltan Primary Schood

Ernehale Infant School

Ernefale Juniar schoo

FHA Ladybrook

Greemwood Primary and Nursery School
Greyhom Primary School

Haddon Primary and Nursery Schoal

Hillside Primary and Mussary Schoal
Hersendale Primary School

EHlisick Junior School

Kirksiead Junior Academy

Leaminglon Primary and Mursary Academy
Mapplewells Primary and Nursery School
Paafiald | ane Acadsmy

Finxton \illage Schools: John King Infant Academy
Pinaton \Village Schools: Longwood Infant Academy
Forchester Junicr School

Stanstead Primary and Mursary School
Teaching Schools

Flying High Trust

Tatal before fived asset funds and pension reserve
Rastricted fixed asset fund
Pansion reserve

Total

2018 2018
£ £

34,1186 =
155,020 105,838
43,008 J482

TG4 -
164,568 154,238
353,544 267,626

16,187 :
210,045 211,633
392 838 208,297
229,893 227, 7
111,623 101,306
160,820 108495
257,201 192,387
164,211 142,122
285,593 168,224
47,632 54,210
108,305 48,324
101,237 P
231,078 247,227
BG.O72 107,838
104,911 94, 781
47,422 45,853
104,534 120, 784
34,751 350,468
298,384 236,419
4,087 182 4372574
63,895,088 53562675

(20,287,000) (13,048,000

47,655,268

43,887,249
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FLYING HIGH TRUST
(& company limited by guarantes)

HOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGLIST 2018

18,  Statement of funds (continued)

Total cost analysls by academy

Expendiiure incurred by each acadermy during the year was as follows:

Teaching
and
educational Oithar Other Other costs

support suppaort direct aexcluding Total
staff costs staff costs costs depreciation 2014
E E E E E

Alderman Pounder Infant and Mursery
School 845, 7av 283,787 52,035 235,762 1,397,351
Beestan Fields Primary School and Mursany 1.062 819 228,169 254 271 225 381 1,771,740
Bilsthorpe Flying High Academy 634,500 116,638 98,640 193,185 1,040,063
Brooklands Primary Schoaol 168,780 65,083 22 583 34,036 290,452
Colgrave Candleby Lane Bchogl 1,768 868 375,101 283,865 485 658 2,897 142
Edwakon Primary Schoal 1.077.813 240,600 164,785 320,845 1,604,244
Ermeshale Infant Schoal 450,065 102,230 28,233 160,808 741,333
Emehale Junlor Schoal TO7 401 185,458 111,591 201,573 1,208,433
FHA Ladybrook 1,207,755 280,248 159,012 309453 1,566,485
Greemwood Primary and Murseny School 1,533,913 455 DBY 128,031 258 443 2 485,454
Greythorn Primany School 950 078 218117 141,288 228,520 1,538,010
Haddon Primary and Nursary School BBS 212 114,788 83,839 318,354 1,100,231
Hillside Primary and Nursery School 1288706 364304 203673 3a711 2,188,394
Horsendale Primary Schoal 641,567 1652 258 S}, 604 250,542 1,156,171
Killssick Junicr School 671,215 161,104 114,576 187,683 1,144,677
Kirkstead Junior Academy 571,548 88,727 130,912 178,315 #78.502
Leamingtcn Primary and Nursery Academy 1,367 601 255830 237432 301169 2162032
Mapplewells Primary and Mursery Schood Ba7 02 187 280 127,871 280,584 1,482 T67T
Pesfiald Lane Academy 1,039,557 278180 124 580 352,835 1,795,141
John King Infant Acaderny 487 BET T4327 g 722 136,121 716,857
Longwaad Infant Academy 243235 77604 22811 73,2048 422148
Porchester Junior Schoaol 504,835 118,844 103,123 246,483 876,356
Stanstead Primary and Nursery School 710,724 145 631 134,972 220,358 1,212,683
Teaching Schools 100,044 145 758 583 082 47,3089 BYT, 283
Flying High Trust Tarem 655,345 112,665 553 280 2,020,501
20,268,744 5432343 3604115 6135382 35441584
=1
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FLYING HIGH TRUST

(A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FIMANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGLUIST 2018

Analysis of net assets betwaen funds

Analysis of net assats betweon funds - current year

Tangible fived assats

Currant assals

Creditors due within one year
Craditors dus In maors than one year
Frovisiona for lisbilittes and charges

Taotal

Analysis of net assets between funds - prior year

Tangible fixed assels

Current assets

Creditors due within one year
Creditors due In mose than one year
Provisions for liabifties and charges

Total

Restricted
Restricted fixed asset Tetal
funds funds funds
2018 2018 2019
E £ £
- 63304 888 63,384 885
774713 535 267 8,282,398
(5,656, 329) (25,070  (3,681,399)
{3.820) - (3,620)
(20,287, 000) - (20,287,000}
(16,199.318) B3.BIS 085 47695268
Resinctod
Resficled  fixed assel Total
fLrads Fureels fLircls
2018 2018 2018
£ £ £
5 52 B08 045 53 908 045
§,134 360 700,288 i B34, 965
(2,757 570) (45 B50) (2 503 236)
4,525) - (4, 525)
{13,048 000) - (1.3, 048, 000)
(8,675 428} 53.662E7S 43 857 249
e
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FLYING HIGH TRUST
(A company limited by guarantes)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUIST 2019

21.

22,

Reconciliation of net income fo net cash flow from operating activities

20139 2018
E E
Meat income for the year {as per Statement of financial activities) 7468018 5078 362
Adjustmeants for:
Depraciation B47,339 550 306
Capital grants from the ESFA and other capital income {sg2.916) (1,382 370
Inierest receivable [2.614) (2 548
Defined benefit pansion scheme obligation inherited 1,428,000 726,000
Definad benafit pension scheme cost less contributions payvabie 1,791,000 1,453,000
Defined banafil pension schems finance cosl 254, 004 376, 000
increase in debiors (209,082) (1,218,300
Increase in craditors B90,384 B27, 625
Leasehold property on conversion (10,841,000) (6525 000)
Defined benelft pension scheme administration cost 5,000 o, 000
Met cash provided by/[used in} operating activities 538,130 (102.875)
Cash flows from financing activities
2015 2018
E F
Fepayments of borrowing {2,BE80) [4.854)
Met cash used in financing activities {2,BB0) {4854}
L e——
Cash flows from investing activities
20149 2078
£
Bank interest receied 2,614 248
Purchase of tangible fived assets (283.428) (1,041, 584)
Capital grants from the ESFA and other capital income 992 916 1382 310
Met cash provided by investing activities 702101 342,974
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FLYING HIGH TRUST
(& company limited by guarantee}

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

24,  Analysis of cash and cash equivalents

2019 2018

£ £

Caszh In hand 5.188.,014 3947 663

Total cash and cash equivalents 5,186,014 3,947 663
— |

Contingent liabilities

In the event of the constiluent academies of the Flying High Trust ceasing to cperate as academies,
provisions are includad in the funding agreaments relating o the clawback of assels and monies paid 1o
the constituent acadamiss.

Pension commitments

The Trust's employess belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers' Pension Scheme for
England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff, and the Local Government Pension Scheme
(LGPS) for nondeaching staff, which is managed by Motlinghamshire County Council and Derbyshire
Ciounty Council, Both are multi-employer defined banefi schemes.

The latest actuarnial valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2012 and of the LGPS 31
March 2016,

Contributions amounting to E403,525 were payable to the schames at 31 August 2018 (2018 - £348, 048)
and are included within creditars,

Teachers' Pension Schems

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, confributary, defined benefit scheme, govemead by
the Teschers' Pension Scheme Regulations 2014, Membership is automatic for full-time leachers in
academbes and, from 1 January 2007, sutomalic for teachers in par-lime employment following
appostment of a change of contract, althowgh they ane able to opt out.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and members contribute on a 'pay as you go' basis - these confributions
along with those made by employers are credited to the Excheguer. Retirement and other pension
benefits are paid by public funds provided by Parliament.
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FLYING HIGH TRUST
(& company limited by guarantes)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGLIST 2012

Pension commitments (continued)
Valuation of the Teachers' Pension Scheme

The Govemnment Actuary, using normal actuaral principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the
TPS in accordance with the Public Senvice Pensions (Waluations and Employer Cost Capl Directions
2014 published by HM Treasury. The aim of the review is to specify the lewel of future contributions,
Actuariel scheme valustions are dependent on assumptions abeout the value of future costs, design of
benefils and many ather factors, The latest actuans] valuation of the TRE was carmed out & gt 31 March
2012 and in accordance with the Public Service Pensions (WValuations and Emplover Cost Cap) Directions
2014. Tha valustion report was published by the Depariment for Education on 9 June 2014, The key
elements of the valuation and subsaquent cansultation ars:

. employer contribution retes sst a8t 16.48% of pensionebie pay (including a 0.08% employer
administration change)

. fotal schame liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future bencfits) for
service to the effectve date of £191,500 millicn, and notional assets (estimated future coniributions
iogether with the nolional investments held at the valuation dale) of £178,600 million giving a
notional past service deficit of £14, 900 million

= an emplover cost cap of 10,9% of pengionable pay will be apphed to fuiure valuations

- the assumed real rate of return is 3,0% in excess of prices and 2% in excess of eamings, The rate
of real eamings growth is essumed to be 2.75%. The assumed nominal rate of return is 5.06%,

Tha TPS vaiwation for 2012 detarmined an employer rate of 16.4%, which was payabls from September
2015, The next valuation of the TRE is currenfly underway bassd on April 2016 data, whereupon the
employer confribution rate is expected to be reassessed and will be payable from 1 Septamber 20192,

The emplovers pension costs pald to TPS In the vear amounted to £1 840,000 (2018 - £, 5587.0001,

A copy of the valuation repart and supporting documentation & on the Teachers' Penglons website

Linder the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is an unfunded mulli-emplover pengion schame. The
Trust has accounted for its contributians to the schema as If it were a defined contribution schame. The
Trust has set cut above the infarmation avallable on the scheme.

Local Government Pension Scheme

The LGPS = a funded defined benefil pension scheme, with the assets held n separate frustes-
admmistered funds. The iotal contribution made for the year ended 31 August 2015 was E1,762,000
{2018 - £7.505000), of which employer's confributions totalled £1,336 000 (2018 - £7,743000) and
employess” contributions fotelled £436 000 (2078 - £362,00d). Tha agreed contribution rates for future
yaars are 18, 3% for employers and a maximum of 12,.5% for employees.

Parhameni has agreed, &t the request af the Secretary of Gtate for Educaticn, o & guaranies that, in the
event of academy clogure, outstanding Local Government Pengion Scheme liabiliies would be met by the
Department for Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013,
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FLYING HIGH TRUST
1A company limited by guarantes)

NMOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

Pension commitments [continued)

Principal actuarial assumptions

2018 2018

b %

Pansion Increass Rale 22and 2.3 23and 24
Salary Increase Rate 28and 3.7 28and20
Discournt Rate 1.8 and 1.9 28

The current mortality assumptions include sufficiant allowance for future Improvements in mortality rates.

The assumed life expactations on refirement 2ge 65 ara:

2018 2014
Years Years
Ratirirng doday
Males 2.7 and 21.9 21 8 and 22.7
Famales 24.4 24 4 and 256
Fefinng & 20 years
Malas 233 and 23.9 238 and 24.9
Females 26.2 and 26.5 26.5 and 25.0
Sensitivity analysis
2018 20148
E£000 EQ00
0.5% Decrease in Real Digcount Rate 5,218,000 662 000
0.5% Increase in Salary Increase Rate 749,000 625, 000
0.5% Increase in Pension Incresse Rate 4,438 000 3938 000
Tha Trust's share of the assats in the scheme was:
At 31 At 27 August
August 2018 2014
E £
Eguities 11,598,000 0 480 (0
Gilts / Bonds 2,436,000 1894, 000
Property 2,367,000 1,975 000
Cash a21,000 311,000
Other 1,610,000 831,000
Total market value of assets

18,632,000

14, 697, 000
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26. Pension commitments (continuad)

The aclual return on scheme assels was £B13,000 (2078 - £828,000),

Thee amounls recognised in the Statement of financial activilies are as follows:

2019 2018
£ E
Current senice cost (2,641,000) (2 586.000)
Past senvice cost (486,000) .
Interast income 432,000 336,000
Inferest cost (76,000} (712000
Total amount recognised in the Statement of financial activities (3,481,000) (Z972.000)
71
Changes in the present value of the defined benef obligations were as follows:
2019 2018
E £
At 1 September 27,739,000 25643000
Conwversion of academny trusts 3,141,000 1, 767 Q00
Current sendos cost 2,641,000 2596000
Interest cost 788,000 T12 000
Employes contributions 426,000 362000
Changes in assumpticns 4 0:48,000 {3,387, a0d)
Bensfita paid (348,000) {154, 000)
Paslt sarvica cosls 486,000 -
At 31 August 38,919,000 27 735000
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27

Pension commitments [continued)
Changes in the fair value of the Trust's share of scheme assets were &8 follows:

2018 2018

E E

At 1 September 14,691,000 11,475,000
Convessian of academy frusts 1,713,000 1041, 000
Interest income 432 000 336,000
Feturn on assels jess net interest 387,000 432,000
Employer contributions 1,336 000 1,142 000
Emplayee cantributions 426,000 362000
Eenefits paid (348,000)  (154.000)
Administration expenses (5,000) (4,000

18,632,000 14,657 000

At 31 August
— |

Operating lease commitments

AL 31 August 2015 the Trust bad commitments o make fulure minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases as follows

2018 2018
£ E

Amounis payable;
Mot later than 1 year 76,825 o021
Later than 1 yvear and not later than § years 1449 280 157,587
11,618 23237

Later than 5 years

237 744 244 845

Members' liability

Each mambear of the chartable company undertakes fo contribule to the assets of the company in the
event of it being wound up while hefshe 15 & member, or within one year sfter hefshe ceases fo be a
member, such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debts and lisbdlites contracied
before he'she ceases to be a mambar.
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28,

Related party transactions

Onwing to the nature of the Trust and the composition of the Board of Trustees being drawn from local
public and privala sector organisations, fransactions may fak= place with arganmations in wiich the
trustees have an interest. All transactions imodving such organisstions are conducted in accordanca with
the raquirements of the AFH, including notifying the ESFA of all fransactions made on or afier 1 Agrll
2019 and obtaining their approval where required, and with the Trust's financial regulations and normal
procurement precadures refsting to connected and related parly fransaciions. The following related party
transaciions took place in the financial period,

me Re Party Transactions:
Inspiring Leaders Limited:

Inspiring Leadera Limited is a not-for-profit company in which Mr G Wheatley, a Trustee of the Trust, is
glen a director. Hiz role ag & director in the company s not remunerated

During the year, the Trust raised imwolces o Inspining Leaders Limited totaling E170.464 (2018 -
E125.073). The balance due from Inspiing Leaders Limited at 31 August 2015 was £16470 (2018 -
E£EB 855} end is included wilhin trade deblors.
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29,

Related party transactions (continued)

Expenditure Related Party Transactions:
Inspiring Leaders Limited:

Inspiring Leaders Limited is a nol-for-profd company in which Mr C Wheatley, a Trustee of the Trust, &
glso a director. His rode a8 a director in the company is nol rermunerated,

During the year, the Trust raceived net invodcas from Inspiring Leaders Limited totalling £66 547 (2018 -
£18,870). The balance dus to Inspiring Leaders Limied at 31 Auguest 2018 was £1,188 (2018 - £nily and
is includad within trade crediors.

FHE Education:

PHE Education is & firm run by Mr P Bennetf, a Trustes of the Trugl The fiem has provided congultancy
sarvices ta the Trust for 8 number of years prior to his appointmant as & director,

During the year, PHB Education invoiced the Trust for services pravided of £5,764 (2018 - £8,460). The
balance cutstanding at the year-end was £155 {2018 - £1,112) and i included within trade creditors,

The Trustees have considered the relaionship in ling with the requiremanis of the AFH and are satisfied
that time is charged at 8 rate which is sufficiently below market value. PHB Education has provided a
statement of assurane confirming that the value of work above £2,500 has been provided “al no maone
than cost’,

Kate McKenna Associates Limited:

Kate Mckenna Associales Limided i 8 company im which Mrs K McKanna, a Trustee of the Trust, is a
director and shareholder. Mrs K McKenna resigned as a Trustee of the Trust on 23 Seplember 2013,

Dwring the year, Kale McKenna Assoclates Limited provided consultancy senvices to the Teaching School
and invoiced the Trust E52,530 (2018 - EBG, 500}, There was no balance outsianding sl either year-and.

The consultancy services were provided in relation to specific grant funding recefved by the Teaching
School The Trust is responsible for administaring the Teaching School funding. However, thay are not
responsible for the awarding of contracts. The grant relates to a regional Teaching School Council Fund
which the Taaching School has been nominaled fo hold 85 a banker on behalf of the Teaching School
Council. Although the grant is held by the Trust, the diresiors do net influence and are not the decision
makers on how this funding is spent.

Mr N Robinson:
iir M Robimsan is a Trustes of the Trusl

Mr N Robinson has provided consultancy senvices to the Teaching School and invosced the Trust £2,000
(2018 - £2,000), There was no balance outstanding at efther year-and.

The consultancy senvices were provided in relation to specific grant funding received by the Teaching
School
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3.

Teaching school trading account

2019
E

Income
Direct Income
Grants, Membarship and Activities B93,828
Other Income
Tranaferred on Conversion -
Total Income
Expenditure
Direct Expenditure
Direct Staff Costs 100,044
Cihver Direct Expanditure S83.092
Total Direct Expenditure 683,136
Other Expenditura
Qthar Slaff Costs 146,768
Other Expenditure 47,389
Total Cther Expenditure 184 157

Total Expenditure
Transfers between funds excluding depreciation

iDeficitysurplius from all sources
Teaching school balances at 1 September 2018

Teaching school balances at 31 August 2019

2019

893,828

877,293
(62,252

(36,717)
350,468

314,761

2018

L34, 884

140,850

B7.853
fraoor

875 860

131,800
24 295

155,189

2078

1,075,734

1,032 049
(39,371)

4, 514
346, 154

250, 468
——
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